
BOARD OF APPEALS  STAFF 
John Tate, Chairman       Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairwoman    Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
Tom Waller                Chelsie Boynton, Planning and Zoning Coordinator  
Bill Beckwith                                        E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney 
Anita Davis 
________________________________________________________________________  

AGENDA 
Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Fayette County Administrative Complex 

Public Meeting Room 
October 24, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

1. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on September 26, 2022.  
 

2. Consideration of 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting dates. 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

3. Petition No. A-808-22, Cole and Natalie Antley, Owner, request the following: 
Variance to Sec. 110-125. A.R. (d) (6) to reduce the side yard setback from 50 feet to 
22 feet to allow for construction of a residential accessory structure (i.e. garage with 
breezeway). The subject property is located in Land Lots 108, 109 and 116 of the 4th 
District and fronts on S.R. 92. 

 
4. Petition No. A-809-22, Bertie Lee Allen, Owner, request the following: Variance to 

Sec. 110-133. R-70. (d)(4)(a)(2) to reduce the front yard setback from 75 feet to 10 
feet to allow existing single-family residence to remain. The subject property is 
located in Land Lot 38 of the 5th District and fronts on Seay Road.  

 
5. Petition No. A-811-22, Magnolia Calderon and Alfonso Contreras, Owner, request 

the following: 1. Variance to Sec. 110-137. R-40, (d) (6) to reduce side yard setback 
from 15 feet to 5 feet to allow an existing residential structure to remain. 2. Variance 
to Sec. 110-137. R-40, (d) (3) to reduce floor area from 1500 square feet to 1,447 feet 
to allow an existing residential structure to remain. The subject property is located in 
Land Lot 229 of the 5th District and fronts on Thornton Drive.  

 
 



Meeting Minutes 9/26/22 
THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS met on September 26th 2022, at 
7:00 P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, 
Georgia.  
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Tate, Chairman  
    Marsha Hopkins, Vice Chairwoman 

Anita Davis 
Bill Beckwith  
Tom Waller 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Deborah Bell, Planning & Zoning Director  
    Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
    Chelsie Boynton, Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
    E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney 
      
 
1. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on August 22nd, 2022.  
  
 Anita Davis made a motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held on August 22nd, 2022.  

Marsha Hopkins seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
2. Petition No. A-799-22, James Brinkerhoff, Owner, request the following: Variance to 

Section 110-133. R-70, (d) (5), to reduce the rear yard setback from 50 feet to 18 feet to 
allow for construction of a residential accessory structure (i.e., garage). The subject 
property is located in Land Lot 1 of the 9th District and fronts on Rivers Road. (The 
applicant has requested to withdraw the petition).  

 
Chairman Tate made a motion to withdraw Petition No. A-799-22, Variance to Section 110-
133. R-70, (d) (5), to reduce the rear yard setback from 50 feet to 18 feet to allow for 
construction of a residential accessory structure (i.e., garage). Bill Beckwith seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 
3. Petition No. A-807-22, Terry and Kristie Ferrell, Owner, request the following: 

 
1. Variance to Sec. 110-79. Residential accessory structures and their uses, (g). 

Architectural standards, to allow for the construction of a metal accessory structure 
with vertical pattern siding, as opposed to the required horizontal pattern. 

 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

2.  Variance to Sec. 110-125. A-R. (d) (5) to reduce the rear yard setback from 75 feet to 
74 feet to allow an existing residential accessory structure to remain. The subject 
property is located in Land Lot 72 of the 4th District and fronts on Woods Road.  

 
Chairman Tate asked if the petitioner was present? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he has been a long-time resident of Fayette County. He stated he is 
here today to get the variance approved so he can build a shop. He stated he understands 
the ordinance and understands what there’s a need for in the County. He stated financially 
this is the shop he can afford. He stated he wouldn’t be here wasting anyone’s time or his 
money. He stated he has seen within a 4 mile radius of his home, new shops and new 
houses with vertical siding. He stated he would not be here if he knew there was not a 
chance of getting approved. He stated he also has a survey for his property. 
 
Chairman Tate asked if there was anyone to speak in support? There were none. He then 
asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition? There were none. He brough the 
discussion back to the Board for discussion. He asked Mr. Ferrell to remain at the podium 
in case anyone had any questions? 
 
Anita Davis stated she’s never built a structure of this nature before. She stated she 
understands he’s requesting the material to go vertical rather than horizontal. She stated it 
seems you would need pretty much the same amount of material to go one way as opposed 
to another, maybe there’s a little difference due to the cuts. She asked how much of a 
difference in cost would it be to have the siding go horizontally as opposed to vertically.  
 
Terry Ferrell stated this is a pole barn built with 66 posts in the main structure. He stated 
there are runners on the inside. Versus if you were to frame it you would have two (2) by 
fours (4)  running 12 foot tall, every foot. So, if you count 30 foot across, 36 down, it’s 
over 140 feet. So, it would be more two (2) by fours (4) than it would with the runners. He 
stated there is a big difference. He stated he has considered that but this is still 
considerably cheaper and it’s the way the builder builds it. He stated there is a picture in 
the packet where you can see the runner, He stated that’s what they use to do the screws 
and that’s what they use to mount the side. He stated there is a considerable difference.  
 
Chairman Tate asked what stage is the building at in terms of it being constructed? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated it has not yet been constructed. He stated the first thing is to go 
through Planning and Zoning to get site approval. He stated after they approve it then it 
goes to Health Department to get the final permit to start building. He stated he was not 
going to sign a contract with his builder or do anything until the County says he’s good to 
go.  
 
Chairman Tate stated Mr. Ferrell stated part of the reasoning for this request was that he’s 
been in his area and he’s seen other buildings with vertical structures. He stated 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

unfortunately that may be the case if something has not been brought to the attention of the 
County. He stated that may have occurred, but no one knew about it. He stated they cannot 
use that as a basis to override what the general ordinance says. He stated there are five (5) 
different categories they use to determine if there should be a variance. He stated they are 
limited to those five (5) categories. He stated he doesn’t see all of or any of those met at 
this moment.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated one of the conditions on the application is that the property will create 
a difficulty or unnecessary hardship. He stated Mr. Ferrell’s response on the application is 
that it will not create a hardship and that’s one of the conditions. He stated it may be 
difficult but according to Mr. Ferrell it’s not a condition, therefore the condition is not met.  
 
Terry Ferrell stated he didn’t understand some of the questions. He stated his hardship, 
financial wise, this is how much he’s budgeted for his shop and with any changes, he may 
not be able to build the shop. He stated he doesn’t know what the Board would define a 
hardship. He said to Chairman Tate’s point, the shops and houses that have vertical sidings 
would have had to come through the County. He stated he’s sure they had to be permitted 
because they have mechanical, power, water, things of that nature. He stated he doesn’t 
know how they would slip through the cracks. He stated he understands what he’s saying 
because people just go build stuff but it’s hard for him to understand how they got by with 
it but he’s not.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked what material is the exterior? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated it’s metal. He stated it’s the same thing that’s in the picture.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated one of the things the Zoning Board of Appeals looks at is the five (5) 
conditions that Chairman Tate mentioned. He stated, unfortunately, financial hardships is 
not one (1) of them. He stated that’s not one of the cases that they would really consider. 
He stated it’s always been that way over the ways. He stated they understand that but 
maintaining the ordinance that the County has set, anybody asking to break it would be 
breaking the law by having the Board approve a variance. He stated it’s been set by the 
Zoning Ordinance that these conditions must be met for them to approve a variance. He 
stated as Mr. Ferrell said, it wouldn’t create a hardship but would probably be difficult. He 
stated in some cases, probably not Mr. Ferrell’s, but in some cases, it would be a 
convenience but not a hardship.  
 
Terry Ferrell asked how is it a convenience if something is costing me more money? 
 
Bill Beckwith stated, again that is one (1) thing we can’t consider. He stated it’s 
unfortunate the Zoning Board of Appeals has to function that way. He stated this has 
always been the criteria and if it costs more money that’s unfortunate. By maintaining the 
ordinance of the County, which says horizontal exteriors are within the ordinance that’s 
what we have to consider.  



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 

Chairman Tate stated he was looking back at the five (5) stipulations that must be met in 
order for the Board to approve a variance and he cannot see where all five (5) are met. He 
said he could see from the point of the literal interpretation of the ordinance would deprive 
the applicant rights that others in the same districts are allowed if you were to base it upon 
the fact that you’re saying there are other citizens that have this then he’d have to look at 
this stipulation to say it has to be allowed. He added, from the standpoint of Zoning Board 
of Appeals this is not something they arbitrarily allow. He stated while there may have 
been some that were there he can’t say that they came before the Board and therefore be 
able to use that particular stipulation to say you did it for somebody else. He stated he has 
to agree at this point that without having some viable basis to say that all of these 
stipulations that must be met have been met, he just doesn’t see it.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated he needed to get clarification from Deborah Bell. He asked if the 
horizontal siding applied to all buildings or just to resident buildings? 
 
Deborah Bell stated it applies to residential accessory structures. There is an exemption for 
farm outbuildings, but it was staff’s opinion that this wasn’t a farm building it was a 
residential accessory structure. 
 
Bill Beckwith asked Mr. Ferrell what would be the purpose of the building you want to 
build? He asked if he has farm implements or any implements that you’ll repair in this 
building? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he has equipment that he uses, he has boats that he’ll put in it. He 
stated he’d use it as a workshop. He stated he doesn’t have a farm or tractor. It’d just be a 
shop and that’s what he’d use it for.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked if he planned on farming. 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he has a lawn mower. He’ll farm his land with his mower.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked if he had a garden. 
 
Terry Ferrell stated yes, he has a garden with jalapenos and tomatoes. He stated he farms. 
He then stated he had a question. He stated that the Chairman spoke about rights. He stated 
with his rights, some got allowed and some didn’t. He stated that he reverts back to this, 
these structures and buildings are there and had to come through the County. He stated he 
could get a stack of 20 or 30 pictures within a five (5) mile radius of his house. He stated 
he wouldn’t be here wasting their time and pleading his case if he didn’t this wasn’t fair. 
He stated he doesn’t feel comfortable going to somebody’s else and start taking pictures. 
He stated he’s not going to turn anybody in or complain or do anything like that.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated let me tell you what often happens with us. He stated that Mr. Ferrell 
has a second (2nd) variance for an existing building that might be too close to the setback 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

on the wetlands. He stated this is almost every situation we have. He said someone 
requests a building permit and building department will come out and check the property 
and make measurements. He stated you probably didn’t know that the building was too 
close to the setback. He stated in many cases that’s how a lot of these cases are found out. 
He stated someone who may have this structure you’re referring to with the vertical siding 
on it, they may have put it up before the ordinance is made but unless someone makes a 
complaint to the code enforcement or somebody wants to build something else on their 
property, there’s no way the County and staff as it is could go around and check the 
buildings that may be in violation. He stated that’s why there’s a second (2nd) variance, 
someone came out because of the shop you wanted to build and measured that distance. He 
stated that’s probably how most of those buildings are in existence with vertical sidings. 
 
Terry Ferrell asked don’t you have to have a permit for EMC or Georgia Power to hook up 
power to a building in the County? 
 
Bill Beckwith stated he did not know. 
 
Terry Ferrell asked if anyone on the Board knew? The Board members did not know. He 
stated he is almost certain you do or they won’t hook up to it because it’s not passed 
inspection. He stated he reverts back to these buildings, that are fairly new because he 
knows the ordinance was put in way before these were built. He stated he is 99 percent 
sure you have to have a permit for them to come out and hook up a meter box because it 
has to be inspected, same as a house. Everything has to be inspected before EMC or a 
power company would come out there and do that. He stated he understands what the 
Board is saying, people do build shed out bins and stuff like that but he’s referring to the 
buildings that have a vertical siding and that he knows had to go through the County.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated unfortunately we are only considering your situation.  
 
Terry Ferrell stated this is apart of my situation to get this approved because everyone else 
has gotten one (1). He stated he’s trying to do the right thing, get it permitted and go 
through all the right steps to get this done so that when he closes on this, everything is 
done, and he can sleep at night.  
 
Chairman Tate stated he understands what Mr. Ferrell is saying, he cannot offer any 
explanation as to how. He stated he certainly believes these buildings exist however 
coming before the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance, if it was never brought to them 
they would have no way of knowing about it. He stated we are bound by the ordinance, the 
ordinances themselves with certain exceptions and if we make an exception we do have to 
abide by the conditions as already stated. He stated that’s where we are at this point. He 
asked if there were any other comments or questions? 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 6 
 
 

Terry Ferrell stated he had a question. He stated Ms. Bell referred to this as a farm usage. 
He asked can they define what kind of farm usage this shop needs to be to have that 
exception? 
 
Deborah Bell stated generally if a property is not an active farm, if they were to show that 
they were farm status for things like tax purposes and other agriculture purposes they 
would have a conservation plan through NRCS (Natural Resources Conservation Service) 
and a farm number through the Farm Service Administration. She stated that’s been the 
standard she’s used on past agricultural properties.  
 
Chairman Tate stated he sees there is also a second request. He stated it is to allow an 
existing structure to remain with an encroachment into the rear yard setback. He asked if 
the reduction is from 75 to 74 feet? 
 
Deborah Bell stated Mr. Ferrell’s measurement on the ground, he came up with the 
building being about a one (1) foot encroachment but when we look at the aerial views of 
the property, Mr. Ferrell didn’t have a survey that included the structure so rather then 
have a surveyor come out and locate the structure, she took the existing parcel survey that 
showed the property lines and overlayed it on an aerial photograph on the tax map with the 
tax lines. She stated she took some known measurements to calibrate those distances and 
she consistently came up with a measurement of a three (3) foot encroachment. She stated 
her recommendation was to approve a five (5) foot encroachment to provide a margin of 
error rather than ask Mr. Ferrell to survey it since it was a minor encroachment. She stated 
Environmental Management reviewed it in regards to floodplain and it did not appear to 
encroach on the floodplain.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated the structure is listed as a pole barn. He asked is that correct? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated yes. 
 
Bill Beckwith asked if it has any siding on it? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated the top where it’s closed in does. He said he thinks it’s call T111 
siding, four (4) by eight (8) sheets, it’s four (4) foot tall.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked what the structure is used for? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he uses it for storage. 
 
Bill Beckwith asked if Mr. Ferrell is the original owner of the property? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated yes. He bought the property and built the house 22 years ago.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked did he build the barn also? 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 7 
 
 
  Terry Ferrell stated yes, about 18 years ago. 
 
  Bill Beckwith stated he is looking to see if that was part of a farm.  
 

Terry Ferrell, stated he has a tractor, bushhog, and his plow. He stated he had horses there. 
He stated he had a farm at one time. He added he does have pictures of the back fence that 
was surveyed. He stated he did print them out, those are the stakes in each corner of the 
property. He stated he measured from the stakes and that’s what he sent to Planning and 
Zoning.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked if he uses the pole barn to store equipment. 
 
Terry Ferrell stated yes. It stores his tractor, trailer, and boat. He stated he also has pictures 
of the measurements.  
 
Chairman Tate stated while they are at a standstill on the first variance, he will make a 
motion for the second (see motion below).  
 
 
Terry Ferrell stated the only thing else he can say about his shop is that with his luck his 
taxes will go up which will increase revenue to the County. He said he’s okay with that, 
he’s 51 years old and finally gets his shop and this is the one he can afford. He stated he 
really really doesn’t see an issue with the vertical siding. He said he does get the 
ordinance, if he was the only shop in Fayette County that was wanting to do this he would 
understand. He said he is trying to do the right thing and go about it the right way so when 
he sleeps at night he can sleep and doesn’t have anybody looking over his shoulder. He 
added it’s not hardly visible from the road.  
 
Chairman Tate stated yes looking at the pictures he can see the house is located well 
beyond the road and certainly appreciates what Mr. Ferrell is saying about wanting to do 
this within the boundaries and the Board is in the same position. He stated they have to 
abide by the ordinances subject to certain specific conditions and if all of those conditions 
are not met then it puts the Board in a difficult position to simply say well let’s just do it 
anyway because there are other people who may have gotten this done. Not necessarily 
through the Board but got it done and at this point he cannot see that that is a valid basis 
for that. He said he understands Mr. Ferrell’s position but this is where the Board is at at 
this point.  
 
Terry Ferrell said if it was a problem someone would be here to oppose it, correct?  
 
Chairman Tate said I’m sorry? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated if it was a problem with a resident in the County they should be here to 
oppose it, correct? So you say, do for one (1) and not for the other. He said that’s why they 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 8 
 
 

had the sign in the front yard for 30 days and why we had this [public hearing] if someone 
wanted to oppose it.  
 
Chairman Tate stated a person has a right to voice their opposition with regard to when 
someone has requested a variance and those are comments the Board would take into 
consideration but that is not the overall binding factor that leads them to whatever 
determination the Board would make. The decisions are based on the guidelines that the 
Board has to follow; what does the ordinance state and under what basis does the Board 
have the authority to overrule that particular ordinance and they have very specific 
conditions and very specific circumstances so all they’re trying to do is stay within the 
guidelines laid out before them.  
 
Bill Beckwith stated what Chairman Tate is saying is if there was another situation just 
like this and we voted against the variance and someone comes along and says well you 
did it for him, how about doing it for me. He stated as an official Board action that would 
be something that would cause a problem. He said what they try to do is follow as much as 
possible the ordinance and they don’t set any precedent that would cause legal action, 
doing something for one person and not for another. He stated by these ordinances being 
set the way they are the Board has to be bound by the ordinances and follow what they 
say. He said at some point there may be a change to the ordinance that makes it a different 
situation but right now like John was saying, without causing a precedence that would be 
opposed to the ordinance, not being an equal application of the ordinance would be what 
the Board wants to stay away from. He asked the chairman if that’s what he was saying.  
 
Chairman Tate stated yes and perhaps, Mr. Ferrell was stating that the other individuals 
with the vertical structures had them done then who did they come before, how did they 
get the approval? He stated he has no answer to that. He can not recall and they have all 
been there a various number of years but he cannot recall a situation where someone came 
before the Board and said well I need to do this because someone else did it without some 
valid basis. 
 
Terry Ferrell stated okay, he said you wanted to make it equal and you cannot do for one 
(1) that you can do for the other so how do these houses around here have vertical siding? 
Homes that people live in and get away with it and I can’t? You can’t do for one (1) but 
can do for the other, how do they do it because I know a house has to be inspected. He said 
it has to have a final CO, goes through a building permit all that. It has to go through 
Planning and Zoning permit process, correct? He said you want to make it equal then let’s 
make it equal. He said I’m just asking to build a little shop, I’m not asking to build a strip 
mall.  
 
Chairman Tate said he understands but they cannot address the other situations because 
there would have to be some consideration given if you were to say well look I have this 
evidence, these people came before you. That means that we set a precedent. 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 9 
 
 

Terry Ferrell stated he can’t get that. He doesn’t think the County is going to say here’s all 
these permits because I’m just Joe Blow down there blowing smoke. 
 
Chairman Tate said he understand Mr. Ferrell’s position on that, it’s just from the 
standpoint of this particular Board and the position their in at this point, he cannot think of 
a particular circumstance where they came before us. He doesn’t know what Fayette 
County officials, or Board, or agency if these people went through that or not. He stated 
Mr. Ferrell’s point is well made however they cannot react based upon what someone else 
may or may not have done.  
 
Anita Davis stated she is not unsympathetic to what Mr. Ferrell is trying to do but she 
can’t help but wonder if there is any other type of façade that he could possibly build. 
Could he possibly use stone? Or anything else to camouflage the vertical, is there any 
other option. Did he speak to the builder to find out if there was any other option?  
 
Terry Ferrell stated no he hasn’t discussed that because he started before with this. This is 
what he likes, this is what’s in the budget, this is what he builds, a lot of these. He’s seen 
them, a personal friend of his had it done. He did a great job and that’s why he’s stuck 
with this set of plans. He said he can’t afford to put stone on the side. He said you’re 
talking 12 foot walls by 36, that’s a lot of money to do that and he’s trying to keep this 
cost down as best he can.  
 
Chairman Tate asked did Mr. Ferrell say he had not looked at other options or that he 
looked at this and this is what he wanted? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he knows there’s other options and everything but he was trying to 
keep the cost down. With this shell and the way it’s built, with this call it a pole barn 
garage because it’s really stout and strong. That’s why he picked it because of the 
overhangs he builds and everything with it, it fits with the needs on his property.  
 
Chairman Tate asked if he would like to consider other possibilities as opposed to us 
continuing with this and perhaps table it? 
 
Terry Ferrell said so pretty much what you’re saying is change the siding to horizontal? 
What else can you do that’s affordable to me to get this approved? He stated he doesn’t 
know what else to look at and do. 
 
Bill Beckwith stated they really try to work with the individual, the homeowners, and the 
property owners and by doing that we suggest that there may be other options to do what 
they want without breaking the law. He asked the Chariman, John are you saying perhaps 
we could table this and let Mr. Ferrell look at other options without denying him this 
evening? 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 10 
 
 

Chairman Tate said if that’s what he’d like to do, at least that’s available. At this point if 
they were to put it to a vote and it’s not approved then you would not be able to do it.  
 
Terry Ferrell asked how many votes, does it have to be unanimous? 
 
Chairman Tate stated three (3) votes one (1) way or the other. 
 
Bill Beckwith stated again there may be some other options or other alternatives, some 
other material besides metal. He stated you mentioned that you’ve only talked to one 
builder. 
 
Terry Ferrell stated he has talked to three (3) other builders and the closest bid to his bid 
which was $40,000 for this shop, the closest bid was $60,000 and that was with horizontal 
siding and that was from a builder he spoke with that builds a lot in Fayette County too.  
 
Bill Beckwith said there may be some other creative solutions in the meantime.  
 
Terry Ferrell said here’s my options, you all will vote, you and you will probably turn it 
down and I’ll have to find some different plans or either let y’all vote and go on with some 
different plans?  
 
Chairman Tate stated if they vote and it’s approved, then his variance is there. If it’s not 
approved, he asked Deborah Bell to explain what would happen. 
 
Deborah Bell stated if it’s not approved, if it’s denied there is a waiting period before you 
can come back and request another variance. The other option is to build something that is 
compliant with the architectural standards.  
 
Terry Ferrell said so there’s no waiting period for that? To apply for a different variance? 
 
Deborah Bell stated if he brought in construction plans that complied with architectural 
standards he wouldn’t need a variance.  
 
Terry Ferrell said I’d be applying for a new one (1)? 
 
Deborah Bell stated he can just amend his existing application and say will use this type of 
material and if it meets those standards he wouldn’t need a variance at all. She stated if it’s 
denied and he  wanted to proceed with his building permit he would need to shift gears and 
provide a revised plan.  
 
Bill Beckwith asked if it’s table can it be tabled for 60 days? Is there an option for 30 or 60 
days. He stated I think it can go 60 days. 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 11 
 
 

Chairman Tate stated if they were to consider having it tabled would Mr. Ferrell want 60 
days to consider other possibilities? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated it sounds like he doesn’t have a choice so sure.   
 
Chairman Tate said they can vote.  
 
Terry Ferrell stated if the Board votes and turns it down he’ll try to find something else he 
can afford.  
 
Bill Beckwith said or they could table it and can give him 60 days. It’s still in a situation 
where he can come back as Deborah said, to provide other information.  
 
Terry Ferrell said they can go ahead and table it. He said he has got one question, the 
houses that are built in Fayette County how do you let them get by when they have vertical 
siding? You say you want it equal and fair. How does it get by them, how does it get by 
yall and how does it get a final CO? This is a home that the Board knows has to be 
permitted. He stated if they want him to, he can go get pictures and take chances and he’ll 
come back and show everybody. He said he wouldn’t be here wasting time if he knew he 
didn’t have a legit argument.  
 
Chairman Tate said he understands and at this point Mr. Ferrell said he wanted to have this 
tabled. Certainly, if he returns in that period of time perhaps Mr. Ferrell may have 
something but at this point that seems like the better option. He asked Mr. Ferrell, did he 
say he did wish to table it? 
 
Terry Ferrell stated that’s fine (see motion below).    

 
Terry Ferrell asked if he has to come back to this meeting and do this again? He asked who 
does he have to see. 
 
Deborah Bell stated yes, he would have the option to come back to the meeting in 60 days. 
She stated we will send an updated calendar for that and if he has alternative materials that 
you’d like to present for the Board to consider, he could present them at that meeting.  
Terry Ferrell asked if he comes to Deborah Bell with the different plans that meet the 
criteria for the County does he still have to come back to the meeting and wait 60 days. 
 
Deborah Bell stated no, he could withdraw the variance request for that part of the 
variance and they would close the case, similarly to the first hearing tonight and he would 
proceed with his building permit.  
 
Terry Ferrell asked if he needed to bring the sign back before the County gets more money 
from him? 
 



ZBA Meeting 
September 26th, 2022 
Page 12 
 
 

Deborah Bell stated yes, if he returns the sign the deposit for the sign is refunded.  
 
Bill Beckwith made a motion to table Petition No. A-807-22, Variance to Sec. 110-79. 
Residential accessory structures and their uses, (g). Architectural standards, to allow for 
the construction of a metal accessory structure with vertical pattern siding, as opposed 
to the required horizontal pattern for 60 days. Tom Waller seconded the motion. The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
Chairman Tate made a motion to approve Petition No. A-807-22, Petition No. A-807-22, 
Variance to Sec. 110-125. A-R. (d) (5) to reduce the rear yard setback from 75 feet to 70 
feet to allow an existing residential accessory structure to remain. Bill Beckwith 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

 
 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 

Chairman Tate asked is there a motion to adjourn?  
 
Anita Davis made a motion to adjourn.  Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-
0.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 pm.  
 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
           OF  
                                             FAYETTE COUNTY 

 
 
                                                                                               _ 

                  JOHN TATE, CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 
 
                                                                           __ 
CHELSIE BOYNTON, ZBA SECRETARY 
 
 
 



SCHEDULE FOR 2023 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATIONS 
(Dates are subject to change with notice.  If a hearing falls on a holiday, a different hearing date will be scheduled.) 

Deadline for application is the first Friday of the month by noon.  If the first Friday of the month 
is on a holiday, the application filing deadline is extended to the next business day.  Variance 
applications require a public hearing held on the fourth Monday of the month before the Zoning 
Board of Appeals.  The Meeting Schedule reflects adjustments for holidays.  The public hearing 
is held at the Fayette County Administrative Complex at Stonewall (located at the southwest corner 
of SR 54 and SR 85 in downtown Fayetteville) on the first floor in the Public Meeting Room (near 
the fountain) and hearings begin at 7:00 p.m.  

APPLICATION ZBA 
DEADLINES MEETING DATES 

January 6, 2023 February 27, 2023 

February 3  March 27  

March 3  April 24 

April 7          May 22 

May 5  June 26 

June 2  July 24 

July 7  August 28 

August 4 September 25 

September 1  October 23 

October 6 November 27 

November 3  December 18  

December 1  January 22, 2024 



 pg. 1 A-808-22 

PETITION NO:  A-808-22 
 
Requested Action:   Variance to side building setback   
      
Location:  2748 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, GA 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0418 019 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 108, 109, 116   
 
Owner(s):  Cole Antley & Natalie Antley 
 
Agent:  n/a 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting variances to the side setback for an existing principal structure and a new accessory structure: 

1. Variance to Sec. 110-125.(d)(6) Side yard setback – to reduce the side yard setback from 50 feet to 22 feet 
to allow an existing accessory structure to remain. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Regarding variance request A-808-22, requesting to reduce the side building setback for an accessory structure, staff 
recommends DENIAL, as there is no evidence of a hardship related to the consideration criteria for variances. 
 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-808-22 

HISTORY 
 
The subject property is a 3.65-acre tract zoned A-R. The tract fronts on S.R. 92 in Land Lots 108, 109, 116 of the 4th 
District. The current use is Single-Family Residential. The lot and its existing structures are legal nonconforming.  
The existing home on the property was built in 1958 and is a legal nonconforming structure in terms of building 
setbacks. 
 
On September 7, 2022, the Department of Building Safety received a complaint that a garage was being constructed 
without a permit. A Stop Work Order was issued, and the homeowner was advised that he needed to obtain a building 
permit. As part of the permitting process, a site plan is required. Through the review, staff discovered the violation. 
The survey provided shows the existing house is 44 feet from the side property line; therefore, the partially constructed 
detached garage is 22 feet from the side property line.   
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System - FCWS has no objection to the proposed variance. This property is currently outside our 

water service area. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management 

• Transportation – The right-of-way and access on S.R. 92 are managed by GDOT. 
• Floodplain Management - The subject property DOES contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM panel 

13113C0160E dated September 26, 2008, and per the FC 2013 Dewberry Limited Flood Study.  
• Wetlands - The property DOES contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and 

Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  
• Watershed Protection - There ARE known state waters located on the subject property. The Flint 

River Watershed Protection Buffer applied to this parcel is, as measured from the Point of 
Wrested Vegetation, an undisturbed buffer of 400’ + 50’ setback OR, as measured from Base 
Flood Elevation, an undisturbed buffer of 100’ + 50’ setback, whichever is greater. 

• Groundwater – The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
 Environmental Health Department  

• 1: Prior to construction, owner must submit an application for an existing onsite evaluation 
• 2: This department has no issues. 
• 3: No objections to the variance, but the owner takes full responsibility for an damages that may have 

occurred to the septic system. This department has no record of approval for this structure. 
 Fire – No comments. 
 

  



 pg. 3 A-808-22 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION    
The applicant provides the following information 
 
Provide a detailed and specific summary of each request.  If additional space is needed, please attach a separate 
sheet of paper. 

a. Move property boundary setback 28’ allowing for a detached garage 18’ x 24 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a variance, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions below exist.  Please read each 
standard below and then address each standard with a detailed response.  Attach additional 
information/documentation as necessary. 
 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of 
property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
a. Too close to property line 
b. There is no place for a functional garage other than the requested spot; 
c. Septic is on the other side therefore no other options. 

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a practical 

difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
a. The structure will allow access from both sides and will not create any obstacles to accessing the 

property. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
a. Existing driveway and entrance to the home are towards the north end making it easier and more 

practical to place the garage in requested spot. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes and 
intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be granted for a use of land or building 
or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; and, 
a. There is no immediate or future detriment involved. 
b. Access to the whole property from both sides of the structure will still be possible if emergency 

should arise on the property.  
  

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that others in the 
same District are allowed; and, 
a. There would be no deprivation in this situation. Given the property boundaries and house location, 

the allotted spot is most aesthetically and practically the best for the given situation. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 4 A-808-22 

 



 pg. 5 A-808-22 



 pg. 6 A-808-22 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 7 A-808-22 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-808-22 

 
 



 pg. 9 A-808-22 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 10 A-808-22 

 

LO
C
AT

IO
N
 O

F 
N
EW

 G
AR

AG
E 



 
2748 S.R. 92 

 
2748 S.R. 92 

 

















 pg. 1 A-809-22 

PETITION NO:  A-809-22 
 
Requested Action:   Variance to front building setback in the R-70 (Single-Family Residential) District  
      
Location:  214 Seay Road, Fayetteville, GA 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0510  04005 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  5th District, Land Lot(s) 38   
 
Owner(s):  Bertie Lee Owens Allen 
 
Agent:  n/a 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting variances to the front setback for an existing principal structure: 

1. Variance to Sec. 110-133.(d)(4)a.2. Front yard setback – to reduce the front yard setback from 75 feet to 10 
feet to allow an existing principal structure to remain. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Regarding variance request A-809-22, requesting to reduce the front building setback for a principal structure, staff 
recommends APPROVAL. It is staff’s opinion that the property presents unique situation.  The request and 
subsequent change to parcel lines does not increase the nonconformity. 
 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-809-22 

HISTORY 
 
The subject property is part of a minor final plat for the Owens/Allen family that was originally recorded in 1986.  
These parcels were all created for family members from the original family farm.  The subject parcel is Lot 6 of the 
Owens Family Estate and is currently an 8.62-acre tract zoned R-70. The tract fronts on Seay Road in Land Lot 38, of 
the 5th District. The current use is Single-Family Residential. The lot is a legal lot of record and meets all zoning 
requirements.  The existing home on the property was built in 1930 and is a legal nonconforming structure in terms 
of building setbacks.   
 
Mrs. Allen owns Lots 6 and 7.  She would like to change the lot line between the two lots to provide some additional 
acreage to Lot 7 so there is an equitable distribution of property between her daughters, who will inherit the properties.  
Both lots meet current zoning standards and will meet zoning standards in the new configuration.  The existing house 
on Lot 6 is nonconforming in terms of the front setback so the change in the lot configuration triggered the need to 
request a variance for the substandard front setback. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System - FCWS has no objection to this proposed variance. Water is available in a 8" DIP water 

main along north side of Seay Rd. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management 

• Transportation – The right-of-way on Seay Road is adequate.  Any new driveways will require a 
driveway permit. 

• Floodplain Management - The subject property DOES NOT contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM 
panel 13113C0112E dated September 26, 2008, nor per the FC 2013 Dewberry Limited Flood 
Study.  

• Wetlands - The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of the Interior, 
Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  

• Watershed Protection - There ARE known state waters located on the subject property. They are 
located at the southernmost end of the property and have a 50’ buffer + a 25’ setback. 

• Groundwater – The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Fire – No objections. 
 

  



 pg. 3 A-809-22 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION    
The applicant provides the following information 
 
Provide a detailed and specific summary of each request.  If additional space is needed, please attach a separate 
sheet of paper. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a variance, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions below exist.  Please read each 
standard below and then address each standard with a detailed response.  Attach additional 
information/documentation as necessary. 
 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of 
property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
a. The house was built between 1930 and 1940and back then the road was a dirt road and was a single 

road at the time. 
 

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a practical 
difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
a. The house is close to the road but I want to shift property lines running down one side of the property 

to add acreage to the connecting property. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
a. Yes. 

 
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes and 

intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be granted for a use of land or building 
or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; and, 
a. No 

  
5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that others in the 

same District are allowed; and, 
a. Yes 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 4 A-809-22 

 



 pg. 5 A-809-22 



 pg. 6 A-809-22 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 7 A-809-22 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-809-22 

 
 



 pg. 9 A-809-22 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 10 A-809-22 

 
 

 
 

 



 
214 Seay Road 

 

 
 























 pg. 1 A-811-22 

PETITION NO:  A-811-22 
 
Requested Action:   Variance to side building setback in the R-40 (Single-Family Residential) District  
      
Location:  275 Thornton Drive, Fayetteville, GA 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0550 02009 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  5th District, Land Lot(s) 229   
 
Owner(s):  Magnolia Calderon and Alfonso Contreras 
 
Agent:  n/a 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following variances for an existing principal structure: 

1. Variance to Sec. 110-137.(d)(6). Side yard setback – to reduce the front yard setback from 75 feet to 10 feet 
to allow an existing principal structure to remain. 

2. Variance to Sec. 110-137.(d)(3) Dimensional Requirements - Floor Area  – to reduce the minimum floor area 
from 1500 square feet to 1447 square feet to allow an existing principal structure to remain. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Regarding variance request A-811-22, part 1., requesting to reduce the side building setback for a principal 
structure, staff recommends APPROVAL; 
 
Regarding variance request A-811-22, part 2., requesting to reduce the minimum floor area for a principal structure, 
staff recommends APPROVAL; 
 
 It is staff’s opinion that the property presents unique situation.  The applicants purchased the property with the 
principal structure in this location and size.  
 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-811-22 

HISTORY 
 
The subject property is part of Bethsaida Woods subdivision, built in 1976. This parcel was originally developed as 
the neighborhood amenity area, with a pool, pool/club house and tennis court.  The existing structure was built with 
an encroachment into the side setback by the original subdivision developer. At a later date, the HOA dissolved and 
the property was sold at a tax sale in 2015. 
 
The current owners purchased the property with the intent to convert the pool/club house into a residential dwelling.  
They were unaware of permitting requirements and began making renovations and additions. The addition made by 
the new owners is within the buildable area of the lot and did not increase the setback encroachment.  Additionally, 
because the building was not originally intended to be a residential structure, it was not required to meet the minimum 
house size of 1500 square feet.  Once the addition is completed, the house will have a total of 1447 square feet. 
 
Building Safety received a complaint about the construction and a stop work order was issued on August 8, 2022. We 
have been working with the owners to obtain the proper variances and building permits to bring the property into 
compliance.  
 
The current owners also began construction on a carport that encroaches into the setback; they have been advised that 
this will not be permitted as an encroachment, and it must be altered to bring it within the buildable area of the lot. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System - FCWS has no objection to this proposed variance. Water is available in an 8" DIP water 

main along north side of Seay Rd. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management 

• Transportation – The right-of-way on Seay Road is adequate.  Any new driveways will require a 
driveway permit. 

• Floodplain Management - The subject property DOES NOT contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM 
panel 13113C0112E dated September 26, 2008, nor per the FC 2013 Dewberry Limited Flood 
Study.  

• Wetlands - The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of the Interior, 
Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  

• Watershed Protection - There ARE known state waters located on the subject property. They are 
located at the southernmost end of the property and have a 50’ buffer + a 25’ setback. 

• Groundwater – The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Fire – No objections. 
 

  



 pg. 3 A-811-22 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION    
The applicant provides the following information 
 
Provide a detailed and specific summary of each request.  If additional space is needed, please attach a separate 
sheet of paper. 

We are requesting a variance to the building setback to the building setback to allow the existing structures 
to remain. 

 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a variance, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions below exist.  Please read each 
standard below and then address each standard with a detailed response.  Attach additional 
information/documentation as necessary. 
 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of 
property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
a. The property was purchased to convert from bath house on HOA property to a res home 

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a practical 

difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
a. We would be homeless if this site is not approved for use in this subdivision which is R-40. 

 
3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 

a. This should never happen on other parcels in the community as the subdivision is completed. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes and 
intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be granted for a use of land or building 
or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; and, 
a. No 

  
5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that others in the 

same District are allowed; and, 
a. Other homes are R-40. We purchased this property and did not understand any of these 

requirements. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 4 A-811-22 

 



 pg. 5 A-811-22 



 pg. 6 A-811-22 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 7 A-811-22 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-811-22 

 
 



 pg. 9 A-811-22 

 
 
 

 



 pg. 10 A-811-22 

 
 



 
275 Thornton Drive 

 
275 Thornton Drive 

 
















	ADPF6CF.tmp
	PETITION NO:  A-808-22
	Location:  2748 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, GA 30215
	Parcel(s): 0418 019
	Owner(s):  Cole Antley & Natalie Antley
	Agent:  n/a
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System - FCWS has no objection to the proposed variance. This property is currently outside our water service area.
	 Public Works/Environmental Management
	 Environmental Health Department
	 1: Prior to construction, owner must submit an application for an existing onsite evaluation
	 2: This department has no issues.
	 3: No objections to the variance, but the owner takes full responsibility for an damages that may have occurred to the septic system. This department has no record of approval for this structure.
	 Fire – No comments.

	A-809-22 Staff Report FINAL.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-809-22
	Location:  214 Seay Road, Fayetteville, GA 30215
	Parcel(s): 0510  04005
	Owner(s):  Bertie Lee Owens Allen
	Agent:  n/a
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System - FCWS has no objection to this proposed variance. Water is available in a 8" DIP water main along north side of Seay Rd.
	 Public Works/Environmental Management
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-811-22 Staff Report FINAL.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-811-22
	Location:  275 Thornton Drive, Fayetteville, GA 30215
	Parcel(s): 0550 02009
	Owner(s):  Magnolia Calderon and Alfonso Contreras
	Agent:  n/a
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 24, 2022
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System - FCWS has no objection to this proposed variance. Water is available in an 8" DIP water main along north side of Seay Rd.
	 Public Works/Environmental Management
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-811-22 Survey (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C
	plot






